

NEWMAN UNIVERSITY

Reports and Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31 July 2018

Registered Charity Number:1110346Registered Company Number:05493384

CONTENTS

Contents 2
Newman University
Report of the Council (incorporating the Strategic Report) 5
Corporate Governance
Responsibilities of Council Members 17
Independent Auditor's Report to Council 19
Statement of Principal Accounting Policies 22
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Reserves 27
Balance Sheet 28
Consolidated Cash Flow 29
Notes to the Financial Statements

NEWMAN UNIVERSITY

CONSTITUTION

The conduct of the University's affairs during the year is governed by an Instrument and Articles of Government, approved by the Privy Council in 2013. The University is a UK charitable company limited by guarantee (Charity No. 1110346).

Council Members and their interests

The Council Members serving during the year to 31 July 2018 and up to the date of approval of these financial statements were:

Chair of the Council	Mr J Day
Independent Council Members – Catholic Members	Mr G Alexander Dr J Carlisle Mr J Day <i>(Chair of Council and Interim Chair of Nominations Committee)</i> Rev Canon D Evans Ms D Finucane Mrs K Gilmore <i>(from 26 July 2018)</i> Mr P Lennon <i>(Chair of Audit Committee from November 2017)</i> Miss E McGrath Mrs R Thorp <i>(until 23 November 2017)</i> Mr J Westwood <i>(until 4 October 2018)</i>
Independent Council Members – non-Catholic Members	Mrs G Ditchburn Dr M Goodwin <i>(Vice-Chair of Council) (until 6 September 2018)</i> Mrs J Jones <i>(from 4 October 2018)</i> Mr S Kenny <i>(Chair of Finance and General Purposes Committee)</i> Professor F Oyebode Mr R Wallace
Council Members – Ex-Officio	Professor J S Davidson Archbishop B Longley
Staff Council Members	Dr K Graham (<i>from 23 November 2017 until 19 October 2018)</i>) Mr C Harris <i>(from 23 November 2017)</i> Mr D Harris <i>(until 31 August 2017)</i> Ms S Parkes (<i>until 31 August 2017</i>)
Student Council Member	Mr T Ashford (from 3 July 2018)

The Council Members received no remuneration during the year in their capacity as members of Council.

All Council Members are required to declare their interests at Council meetings and are not able to vote on matters in which they have a direct interest.

The Council Members of the University have agreed to contribute $\pounds 1$ each to the assets of the University in the event of it being wound up.

PRINCIPAL ADDRESS

Newman University Genners Lane Bartley Green Birmingham B32 3NT

VICE-CHANCELLOR

Professor J Scott Davidson

BANKERS

National Westminster Bank Plc Commercial Banking 4th Floor, 2 St Philip's Place Birmingham B3 2RB

SOLICITORS

Mills & Reeve 78-84 Colmore Row Birmingham B3 2AB

Shakespeare Martineau No 1 Colmore Square Birmingham B4 6AA

AUDITORS

- (Internal) BDO LLP Bridgewater House Finzels Reach Counterslip Bristol BS1 6BX
- (External) Grant Thornton UK LLP The Colmore Building 20 Colmore Circus Birmingham B4 6AT

REPORT OF THE COUNCIL (INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

The Council is pleased to present its report and the accounts of the University for the year ended 31 July 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the University in the year under review, in line with the University's objects, was the provision of high-quality foundation, undergraduate and postgraduate degree level courses. These programmes were offered through the two Faculties of the University.

In planning activities, the Council Members have given careful consideration to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Introduction

Newman University is named after Blessed John Henry Cardinal Newman (1801-90). His own journey of mind and heart, across the 19th century, engaged him with all the great issues - political, social, and religious - of his day and provoked him to give a fresh reading of the meaning and development of religious faith and understanding. Newman was beatified by Pope Benedict XVI in September 2010.

Newman was an extraordinary thinker whose creative and lively mind engaged with the process by which men and women come to knowledge and truth. His explorations of the human intellectual and spiritual journey anticipate much of the contemporary work on multiple modes of intelligence and understanding that underpin the way we learn and teach at Newman University. In his famous lectures The Idea of a University Defined and Illustrated, he emphasised that the main role of the university was to train the mind, and he developed the idea of a learning community and the tutorial system, which again we use to good effect here at Newman.

Newman was always available to the people of Birmingham, rich and poor, who came to him for advice and instruction. When Blessed John Henry Newman died, he was a Cardinal of the Catholic Church, honoured internationally, but it was his ability to touch and enlighten the hearts of so many that make him such a fitting patron for our university and its mission in contemporary British society.

At Newman University, we have a long and proud tradition of providing high-quality, formative education in a values-driven environment. This quality is reflected in the award of university title in February 2013, a significant moment in the history of Newman. This process of change to full university culminated in March 2014 with the appointment of our first Chancellor, Cardinal Murphy-O'Connor, the emeritus Archbishop of Westminster and former spiritual leader of the Catholic Church in England and Wales. As formal head of the University, he took on a largely ceremonial role, carrying out ambassadorial and representative duties, until his death in September 2017.

Founded in 1968 by the Catholic Education Service to train teachers, Newman University has significantly expanded its work into a range of other areas including single and joint honours degrees, both full- and part–time, and work-based foundation degrees. Research and postgraduate study remain important areas of work at Newman University. The founding principles of a supportive learning community, underpinned by a strong Catholic ethos, and providing opportunity for all, continue to underpin the work of the University.

50 years of quality education

As a student-centred university, Newman's challenging yet supportive learning environment enables students to engage with theories and concepts, discuss ideas and become independent learners and creative thinkers able to make a difference in the world.

The institution has been providing supportive education to the local community for the last 50 years, and, in 2018, celebrated the 50th anniversary. A number of specific events brought together the community, partners, students and staff celebrating successes, and acknowledging the foundations on which to build the next 50 years of teaching and learning.

In February 2018, Newman University hosted The Cathedrals Group Choirs Festival at Symphony Hall, with ten university choirs and over 300 choristers. The University also hosted a 50th anniversary reunion for alumni, with hundreds of former students attending, and took the opportunity to launch the Newman University Alumni Volunteers Scheme, an initiative set up to re-engage with alumni in their support of our current students.

In the National Student Survey (NSS) 2018, Newman University exceeded the national benchmarks in a number of subject areas by at least 5%, including Counselling, English, History, Psychology, Working with Children Young People and Families, Sports Science and Youth and Community Work. Newman once again scored highly in 'learning opportunities for students' achieving 4% above the national benchmark. In this area taught modules as well as work placements provide a huge variety of opportunities for students to develop and learn, providing a formative education for all. In addition, student satisfaction for teaching, academic support, learning resources and student voice scored above the sector average, along with library resources achieving 3% higher than the sector average and the organisation and smooth running of courses scoring 5% higher than the sector average. According to the NSS results staff at Newman were 4% more likely than the sector average to value students' views and opinions about the course, which reflects on the unique, inclusive teaching style that the University offers to students. The interactive teaching styles, coupled with small class sizes, enable lively discussion and innovative teaching, where all students have the chance to participate and to be heard.

The work placements available to all students are a very important part of Newman's degree programmes, allowing students to develop their skills and use the abilities they have developed in real world settings. This experience makes Newman graduates highly sought after by graduate employers and many subject areas see a good percentage of students either in employment or further study, including 92% of Business students, 100% of Drama students, 97% of English students and 94% of Sport students (respondents of the 2016-17 DLHE survey). The success of Newman's graduates is due to the commitment of the University to not only give students good academic qualifications but also to encourage a flexibility to change, developing enquiring minds capable of innovating and adapting to the challenges of the future. This is demonstrated by the University careers team's initiative to integrate preparation for careers into general teaching, putting students in an advantageous position when it comes to securing employment.

Students are also encouraged to undertake research in collaboration with their lecturers which has often led to students securing research grants, presenting at national conferences and having their work published in well-known publications. The academic staff at Newman are research active enabling them to debate and discuss current topics within their field of expertise with their students, giving them a greater understanding of their subject area.

Newman University has due regard to the Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit and is committed to widening participation and social mobility. As a result, Newman University has developed an outstanding reputation of achievement in this area. For example, the University exceeds nationally derived benchmarks for the recruitment of students from state schools and lower socio-economic groups and low participation neighbourhoods. According to the latest Sunday Times analysis, Newman has the 3rd highest working class intake, the 2nd highest state school intake, and one in three of Newman's students is a mature student. Newman has an Article 26 scholarship which supports students who have fled persecution and sought asylum in the UK. The University has also committed to support a Syrian refugee student.

The Economist also released a report in 2017 which placed Newman towards the top of the rankings, this time focusing on graduate earning data. The Economist's research compared expected earnings of graduates with actual earnings, evaluating which institutions added the most value to students. Newman University was placed 3rd in the table of all UK universities as it was shown that graduates earned on average an additional £2,801 per annum more than anticipated.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievements and performance

Newman University continues to develop the campus and the facilities for both students and staff. At the start of 2018 the new Cofton Halls of residence were formally opened, providing deluxe en suite accommodation for 108 students. Additionally new teaching space was unveiled, as the St Hilda building came online with light and airy teaching and learning spaces. A brand new atrium provides an additional furnished seating area for students and staff where eating, socialising and group working can take place.

Newman University continues to work hard in order to create a sustainable environment and is utilising the latest technology to control energy consumption. Following an independent assessment, Newman received reaccreditation of the Gold award in 2017 from EcoCampus, the environmental award scheme is for the Higher Education sector. With the installation of further solar panel capacity across the campus, Newman now generates 10% of its own electricity from renewable sources with the potential to significantly increase this over the forthcoming years. The new halls of residence, built to A/B EPC rating, is the most environmental friendly building ever built at our campus and will generate some of its own electricity by using the latest micro CHP technology, which enables the generation of electricity from the heat loading of the building.

The gaining of research degree awarding powers (RDAP) is recognised as being of strategic importance to the institution's development. Newman University has made the commitment to be in the position to apply for research degree awarding powers as soon as possible after 2020. All postgraduate research students enrolled for doctoral degrees with Newman during the year are also registered with Liverpool Hope University and will receive their award from them. It is intended that the partnership with Liverpool Hope University continues until Newman University gains its own research degree awarding powers. This year saw Newman's first doctoral completions under the partnership with Liverpool Hope, with all examined students passing their vivas successfully.

Newman University is committed to maintaining our international connections as we are part of the long and proud history of Catholic education. We have established good links with our sister/brother institution in the US: Newman University Wichita in Kansas and we have a well-supported Erasmus programme. We are also an active member of the International Federation of Catholic Universities.

The University continues to develop its links with the city of Birmingham and was a founding member of Citizens UK Birmingham, an alliance of civil society groups within the city, and continues to actively support and engage with the objective of the group. The vision is to build a diverse and independent alliance of civil society institutions that will act together for the common good of Birmingham. Working with local communities, the University works collaboratively with the Birmingham Civic Society in developing school projects, and is a supporter of the Birmingham Literature Festival. The development of outreach activities through the National Collaborative Outreach Programme (NCOP) has enabled the University to support potential students from disadvantaged backgrounds from across the city, hosting 15 events for years 9 to 13 from local schools on campus, and supporting 18 events at other venues

Key performance indicators

The University's main key performance indicators are summarised as detailed below. Academic performance is more difficult to summarise in a simple indicator and therefore this is more fully reviewed in a later section of the operating and financial review. The University has broadly achieved its key performance indicators, the data for which is within the audited financial statements.

Key performance indicator	2017/18 Target	2017/18 Achievement	2016/17 Achievement
Student Numbers (home, full time)	2197	2068	2090
Surplus as % turnover	3% (min)	2.2%	6.25%
Pay costs / income	65% (max)	63%	59%
Debt servicing costs	4% (max)	0.6%	0.4%
Minimum cash levels	£2.5m	£6.0m	£5.2m

Academic performance

Newman University has trained and educated over 13,000 primary and secondary school teachers and provided over 13,000 qualified teachers since 1968 for Birmingham, the West Midlands and further afield. In addition, the University offers continuing professional development programmes for serving teachers and the school workforce. The very popular MA Education recognises the importance of Postgraduate Professional Development (PPD) and of teaching and of aspirations for teaching to become a master's level profession. Newman is also a founder member of the Teaching and Learning Academy Framework for the Midlands, South West and South Wales. The Teaching and Learning Academy offers national professional recognition and non-accredited CPD, in addition to facilitating accredited CPD at levels 4-7.

The University has continued to be successful in relation to academic quality. Within the latest OFSTED inspection for Newman's School of Education all Initial Teacher Education provision was rated as Grade 2, good (December 2015). Under the revised operating model of quality assurance, the annual provider review 2016-17, Newman was graded by HEFCE as 'Meets requirements – No action required' (the highest grading under the new QA system) whilst in the Teaching Excellence Framework (TEF) the University received a silver award in June 2017 which lasts for 3 years. The TEF award acknowledged the key role that Newman's high-quality teaching plays in encouraging students to become original thinkers and resilient problem solvers who are ready for the challenges of the professional world.

The TEF Panel's judgement singled out for particular praise the institutional culture of recognising and rewarding excellent teaching and the fact that Newman's courses provide high levels of stretch for all students, alongside effective support for their development, progression and attainment.

Newman is involved in collaborative provision and has extended its accreditation agreements with Halesowen College, Dudley College, Solihull College, Bournville College, Markfield Institute of Higher Education, Queen's Ecumenical Foundation and South & City College, as well as with Northern Guild and ForMission College. Newman is now working in partnership with two school-centred initial teacher training (SCITT) consortia in Cornwall and Northamptonshire as their PGCE provider, thereby contributing to teacher supply across the country. In addition, Newman now has a formal partnership agreement with Aston University, supporting their undergraduates to progress to Primary and Secondary PGCE places at Newman, in addition to a similar informal agreement with Coventry University. Additionally, Newman is also working in joint delivery of programmes with Evolve, a social enterprise company, Ludwigsburg Protestant University, and Birmingham Pupil and School Support, all of which serve as important partnerships for the University.

Psychology and Counselling at Newman continue to offer a wide range of undergraduate and postgraduate programmes, a number of which are fully accredited by the relevant professional bodies: British Association for Counselling and Psychotherapy (BACP), British Psychological Society (BPS), and the UK Council for Counselling and Psychotherapy (UKCP).

2017 saw the introduction of degrees with a foundation year. A foundation year opens up education opportunities enabling more students to progress to a three-year degree course. The teaching and learning builds self-confidence for the students, enabling them to progress more smoothly to their chosen degree course and career. The year also saw the first students enrol on an innovative new Master's degree in Work Based Learning which allows students in work to develop advanced skills of reflection and research and the opportunity to undertake projects relevant to their organisation. A number of vocational routes have been developed, including Chaplaincy, Criminal Justice Practice and Health Mentoring.

Graduates from Newman University are employed in a wide variety of sectors completing a wide range of roles. The 2016/2017 DLHE demonstrated how students worked within sectors such as business, accountancy, banking and finance, charity and voluntary sector, digital media, health and social care, sport and tourism, marketing, IT, media and internet, recruitment and HR, public services and education.

Financial review of the year

The University's Income, Expenditure and Results for the year to 31 July 2018 are summarised as follows:

Income Expenditure	2017/18 £,000 24,150 23,613	2016/17 £,000 24,451 22,808
Surplus on continuing operations	537	1,643
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Asset Transfer from Revaluation Reserve in respect of depreciation of revalued assets	- 147	(114) 147
Comprehensive Income for the year	684	1,676_

The University's total income in 2017/18 of £24.1 million has decreased by 1.2% on the previous year and effective cost control has enabled it to continue to generate positive operating surpluses.

The outturn for the year reflects the Council's commitment to the generation of operating surpluses, in order to further invest in the campus. This financial strategy supports both investment in the campus and the ongoing sustainability of operations, whilst the necessity to make efficiency savings has been embraced.

Plans for future periods

The mission of the University has always been to provide high-quality accessible academic and professional education based on respect for others, social justice and equality. Newman University seeks to make a positive difference to individuals and communities through the contribution of staff, students and graduates and will continue to do so.

The Council is charged with the responsibility of setting the strategic direction of the University in the longer term. Council approved a new Strategic Plan in June 2014 covering the period 2014-2020. The Strategic Plan derives from the clear framework of a new vision, a reasserted Catholic ethos and the confirmed mission and values of Newman University. The key strands of the Strategic Plan are: formation for students; formation for staff; research, enterprise and scholarship; collaborative partnerships and sustainable development. Newman, in line with its motto 'ex umbris in veritatem' (out of the shadows into truth), is committed to continued enhancement of its approach to formation for students and staff. Following the appointment of the new Vice-Chancellor in January 2017 the Strategic Plan has been reviewed and refreshed.

As expected, the commitment to teacher education, for both Catholic and non-Catholic schools, remains at the heart of the mission and future planning of the University. Newman is one of the largest accredited providers of School Direct training in the West Midlands, working with Teaching School Alliances and individual schools at both primary and secondary levels.

Newman University remains deeply committed to the goals of widening access to, and participation in, higher education, offered in flexible programmes of different kinds. The University believes it is well placed to make a significant contribution to the government's targets for widening participation and social mobility and consistently outperforms its location-adjusted benchmarks in this area.

The Council is confident of the security of the University's position. With a healthy out-turn on the year, reasonable cash reserves and a limited burden of debt, Newman is well placed to exploit the opportunities offered in the contemporary context of higher education in the UK and will continue to support and extend its founding vision for Catholic higher education. The Council Members thank the staff for their commitment to this shared endeavour and for their many successes in the year.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The University's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks including the effects of changes in credit risk and liquidity risk. The University does not have material exposures in any of the areas identified above and consequently does not use derivative instruments to manage these exposures. The University's principal financial instruments comprise sterling cash deposits together with debtors and creditors that arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the University's financial instruments can be analysed as follows:

Credit risk

The University's principal financial assets are bank balances, cash and debtors, which represent the University's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The University's credit risk is primarily attributable to its debtors. Credit risk is managed by monitoring the aggregate amount and duration of exposure to any one debtor depending upon their credit risk. The University's operations are such that, with the exception of the Student Loans Company, significant amounts are very rarely owed by a single debtor. The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful debts, estimated by the University's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic environment.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter-parties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The University has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counter parties and customers.

Liquidity risk

The University's policy has been to ensure continuity of funding through acquiring the University's fixed assets using the generation of cash from its operating activities. The University has loan facilities in place, which it intends to utilise in the future as part of the University asset strategy, and to ensure the University maintains adequate levels of liquid resources in future years.

Interest rate risk

Interest--bearing assets comprise of cash and bank deposits, all of which earn interest at fixed and floating rates. The University currently has less than £1m of debt which is serviced at a floating rate. The Council monitors the overall level of borrowings, interest costs and hedging strategy to limit any adverse effects.

Equality of opportunity in employment

Applications for employment by people with a disability are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the applicant concerned. In the event of existing employees becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the University continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the University that the training, career development and promotion of people with a disability should, as far as possible, achieve identical outcomes with that of other employees.

In 2011 the Governing body adopted a Single Equality Scheme, which was developed in recognition of the interrelated nature of equalities legislation and in response to the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty, which require institutions to work to promote equality and eliminate discrimination in all its activities; this is reviewed by the Equality & Diversity Committee and reported on as appropriate. It is the policy of the University that all staff are required to undertake relevant equality and diversity training. The Council has responsibility for monitoring compliance in the areas of employment equality.

Employee involvement

The 2014-2020 Strategic Plan gives a commitment to staff formation by encouraging staff to develop and flourish in alignment with the strategic aims.

Enhancement of staff formation goes hand-in-hand with enhancement of student formation. Therefore the University places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and on good communication with them. The Human Resources Department and Academic Practice Unit are responsible for establishing training programmes at all levels of the institution.

Staff are encouraged to be involved in the University's committees, with a view to assuring full participation by staff members in all levels of organisational decision-making. The University has a Joint Negotiating and Consultative Committee as the means for formal consultation and negotiation of terms of employment. This Committee is based on the principles of partnership working and represents all staff.

Trade Union Regulations 2017: Facility Time data for the period April 2017 to March 2018. 19 staff acted as Trades Union Representatives with 12 spending between 1%-50% of their working hours on facility time and 7 spending 0% of their working hours on facility time. 0.08% of the total pay bill was spent on facility time, and 0% of paid facility time was spent on trade union activities.

THE CONTEXT FOR HIGHER EDUCATION

Newman University makes a regular assessment of the risk factors in the external environment which may impact on the University; at the present time these are significant. The current financial climate continues to pose a material risk to even the most effectively run institutions. Newman has taken a prudent approach to the management of its finances and the Council Members and Executive are in close contact to ensure that the University's finances are appropriately monitored and managed.

Newman University announces its tuition fees annually following consultation with a range of stakeholders including the Students' Union. As a student-centred University, with strong Catholic values, Newman is committed to providing a values-driven, formative university education, available to people from all backgrounds. With this in mind, Newman has ensured that a wide range of lower- cost part-time courses are available to enable students to combine working increased hours whilst only taking an additional one and a half years to complete their course.

A fundamental part of Newman University's mission is to support social mobility through education. Newman has developed a range of student support and scholarship packages designed to provide assistance to a range of students, and a contextualised admissions process has already been established. This matches Newman's commitment to continue to be a centre of excellence for widening participation and social mobility. In addition, the University will work to attract students from minority groups not currently engaged in higher education. Student numbers showed an increase in 2015/16 reflecting the impact of the removal of the student number cap for high-achieving students. The demand for programmes remains healthy reflecting Newman's belief that its portfolio, which combines academic rigour with professional orientation, will be attractive in the current climate.

Developing a much clearer 'university' identity and providing up-to-date resources is seen as essential to maintaining standards and improving recruitment and retention in the longer term. This was a key driver in the decision to invest £22m in the campus over three years. In addition, this investment supports curriculum strengths as well as the widening participation agenda. Investment also includes planned sustainability measures to cut future running costs. The development is also a central element in the revitalising of the Bartley Green area. As a Catholic university, Newman believes that strong stewardship of its assets must be maintained to enable the fulfilment of its mission to realise human potential. This is reflected in its financial and other decisions.

PAYMENT OF CREDITORS

It is the University's policy to obtain the best terms for all business; thus, there is no single policy as to the terms used. In agreements negotiated with suppliers, the University endeavours to include and abide by specific payment terms.

Auditors

Grant Thornton UK LLP offer themselves for reappointment as auditors in accordance with Section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Report of the Council (incorporating the Strategic Report) was approved on behalf of the Council by:

Mr Jonathan Day (Chair of the Council)

> Do-La

Professor J Scott Davidson (Vice Chancellor/Council Member)

Date of Approval: 22 November 2018

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Newman University is an independent Roman Catholic institution which was granted taught degree awarding powers by the Privy Council in 2007 and full university status in 2013. The Privy Council subsequently twice approved amendments to the Memorandum and Articles of Association in 2007 and 2013.

The University complies with the Higher Education Code of Governance that was re-issued by the Committee of University Chairmen in 2014. The Council, as constituted by the University's Articles of Association, comprises fourteen external independent Council Members. The Archbishop of Birmingham and the Vice-Chancellor are ex officio members and there are two Members elected by the staff of the University and one student Member elected by the student body. The roles of Chair and Vice-Chair of the Council are separated from the role of the University's Chief Executive, the Vice-Chancellor. The matters especially reserved to the Council for decision are set out in the Articles of Association. The Council, which holds to itself the responsibilities for the ongoing strategic direction of the University, the approval of major developments and the receipt of regular reports from the University Senior Management Team on the day-to-day operations of its business, meets at least four times a year.

The Council has three main Sub-Committees – a Finance and General Purposes Committee, an Audit Committee, and a Nominations Committee. The Committees meet at least three times a year and their decisions are formally reported to the Council. The Committees are formally constituted through the Standing Orders of the Council with terms of reference and comprise mainly of external members of the Council, one of whom is the Chair. University Council Members attend meetings regularly and this has ensured quoracy.

The Finance and General Purposes Committee recommends to the Council the University's annual budgets and also monitors performance in relation to the budgets approved. It embraces a Remuneration Sub-Committee, which determines the remuneration of those members of the University Leadership Team who are appointed by the Council.

The Audit Committee meets with the external and internal auditors to discuss audit findings and to consider detailed internal audit reports and recommendations for the improvement of the University's systems of internal control, together with management's responses and implementation plans. It also receives and considers reports from the Department of Education (previously the National College for Teaching and Leadership, NCTL) and the Office for Students (previously the Higher Education Funding Council for England, HEFCE) as they affect the University's business and monitors adherence to the regulatory requirements. It reviews the University's annual financial statements, together with the accounting policies. The Vice-Chancellor is not a member of the Committee; the Committee meets with the internal and external auditors on their own for independent discussions annually.

The role of the Nominations Committee is to review the tenure of current members and seek out nominees for new membership of the Council and its committees, taking into account the balance of skills, experience and diversity of the Council.

During 2018 the Council undertook a review of its committee structure and has implemented some changes during 2018/2019. The Remunerations Committee has become a committee of Council. Nominations Committee has expanded its terms of reference to include oversight of governance effectiveness and continuing compliance with the CUC code, and has been retitled to Nominations and Governance Committee.

The Senate has oversight of the academic affairs of the institution and draws its membership entirely from the staff and the students of the University. The formal relationship between the Senate and the Council is managed through reports presented to the Council at every meeting by the Vice-Chancellor as Chair of Senate, featuring matters relating to reviews of the quality process and plans for academic development. Since the updated HEFCE MAA was published, which required (as part of the new operating model for quality assessment) governing bodies to provide assurance statements about the student experience, student outcome and degree standards, the University has established additional opportunities for Senate and the Board to gain a deeper understanding of each other's roles. A Senate-Council connection meeting takes place annually. This meeting has a joint agenda with presentations that enable discussion and promote opportunities for a deeper understanding of the respective responsibilities of each body. Examples of agenda items have included: An 'on the ground' perspective of the practical things that external examiners contribute to maintaining academic standards and the

continuous improvement of the student experience, reflections on academic freedom in the HE environment and beyond.

The Council is thus able to monitor the extent to which the Senate is conducting the academic affairs of the University in line with the direction of the Strategic Plan.

The Vice-Chancellor is the Chief Executive Officer of the University and has a general responsibility to the Council for the organisation, direction and management of the institution. Under the terms of the formal Funding Agreement with the Department of Education (previously NCTL) and the Memorandum of Assurance and Accountability between the University and the Office for Students (previously HEFCE), the Chief Executive is the Lead Accounting Officer for the University, the Vice-Chancellor is the designated officer of the institution and in that capacity can be summoned to appear before the Public Accounts Committee of the House of Commons.

The University maintains a Register of Interests of members of the Council and senior officers of the University, which may be consulted by prior arrangement with the Clerk to the Council. In accordance with the Articles of Association, the University Secretary and Registrar has been appointed as Clerk to the Council; their job description contains separate responsibilities for each of these posts. As Clerk to the Council, they provide independent advice on matters of governance to all Council Members.

STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

The University is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance. The University's Council is responsible for the University's system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Council is of the view that there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the University's significant risks. It has been in place for the year ended 31 July 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts, and is regularly reviewed by the Council and its Audit Committee to ensure that it accords with best practice internal control guidance for directors as deemed appropriate for higher education.

The Finance & General Purposes Committee, as discussed above, recommends to the Council the University's annual revenue and capital budgets and monitors performance in relation to the approved budgets. The Remuneration Committee determines the remuneration of the most senior staff, including the Vice-Chancellor.

The role of the Nominations Committee has been established following good practice outlined in the CUC Higher Education Code of Governance and its role is to seek out and consider applications for the membership of the Council and its committees.

In June 2014, the University and Council prepared and adopted a Strategic Plan with a revised Risk Register and key performance indicators linked to the strategic goals. The system of risk management, which has been in operation since 2010, and reviewed in 2017, places emphasis on the active management of risk rather than a monitoring of risk and will continue as such. Risk reports setting out key performance and risk indicators are reviewed quarterly by the University's management team and at each scheduled Audit Committee meeting. The latter also receives regular reports from the internal audit service which include recommendations for improvement. The Audit Committee's role in internal financial control is confined to a high level review of the arrangements. The Council's agenda includes a regular item for consideration of risk and control and receives reports thereon from the University Leadership Team and the Audit Committee. The emphasis is on obtaining the relevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting by exception.

This has satisfied the Council that management, together with the internal audit service, have an appropriate process for identifying, evaluating and managing risk, together with appropriate staff training.

During the year, the University has:

- considered risk at meetings of the University Leadership Team and the University Operations Team;
- revised the fundamental risk register to provide further information on risks, controls and early warnings of changes in risk level;
- reported to the Audit Committee at each meeting, and annually at Council, on risk issues; and
- used the risk register to determine the direction of the internal audit plan.

The key elements of the University's system of internal financial control, which is designed to discharge the responsibilities set out above, include the following:

- clear definitions of the responsibilities of, and the authority delegated to, heads of academic subject areas and administrative departments;
- a comprehensive medium- and short-term planning process, supplemented by detailed annual income, expenditure, capital and cash flow budgets;
- regular reviews of key performance indicators and business risks and quarterly reviews of financial results involving variance reporting and updates of forecast outturns;
- clearly defined and formalised requirements for approval and control of expenditure, with investment decisions involving capital or revenue expenditure being subject to formal detailed appraisal and review according to approval levels set by the Council;
- comprehensive financial regulations, detailing financial controls and procedures, approved by the Audit Committee and the Council; and
- a professional Internal Audit Service whose annual programme is approved by the Audit Committee and endorsed by the Council, and whose head provides the Council with a report on internal audit activity within the University and an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the University's system of internal control, including internal financial control, which operates to standards defined in the HEFCE Audit Code of Practice (2016).

athern

Mr Jonathan Day (Chair of the Council)

Professor J Scott Davidson (Vice Chancellor/Council Member)

Date of Approval: 22 November 2018

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COUNCIL MEMBERS

In accordance with the University's Articles of Association, the Council is responsible for the administration and management of the affairs of the University and is required to present audited financial statements for each financial year.

The Council is also responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.

The Council is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the University to enable it to ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the University's Articles of Association, the Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further and Higher Education, the Companies Act 2006, and other relevant Accounting Standards. In addition, within the terms and conditions of the Financial Agreement agreed between the Department of Education (previously NCTL) and the Council of the University, and the Funding Memorandum agreed between the Office for Students (previously HEFCE) and the Council of the University, and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Council, through its designated office holder, is required to prepare financial statements for each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the University and of the surplus or deficit and cash flows for that year.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council:

- > ensures suitable accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
- > makes judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- states whether applicable accounting standards and statements of recommended practice have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the accounts; and
- > prepares the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the University will continue in operation.

The Council is satisfied that the University has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future; for this reason the going concern basis continues to be adopted in the preparation of the financial statements.

The Council is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the University and to enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. It has a general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to it to safeguard the assets of the University and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Council has taken reasonable steps to:

- ensure that funds from the Department of Education, the Office for Students and other funding bodies are used only for the purposes for which they have been given and in accordance with the Office for Students' Financial Memorandum and the Funding Agreement with the Department of Education and any other conditions which the Department of Education or the Office for Students may from time to time prescribe;
- ensure that there are appropriate financial management controls in place to safeguard public funds and funds from other sources;
- > safeguard the assets of the University and prevent and detect fraud; and
- secure the economic, efficient and effective management of the University's resources and expenditure.

Disclosure of information to auditors

At the date of making this report each of the University's Council Members, as set out on page 3, confirm the following:

- so far as each Council Member is aware, there is no relevant information needed by the University's auditors in connection with preparing their report of which the University's auditors are unaware; and
- each Council Member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Member in order to make themselves aware of any relevant information needed by the University's auditors in connection with preparing their report and to establish that the University's auditors are aware of that information.

Approved on behalf of the Council by:

Mr Jonathan Day (Chair of the Council)

Professor J Scott Davidson (Vice Chancellor/Council Member)

Date of Approval: 22 November 2018

Independent auditor's report to the Council of Newman University

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Newman University (the 'parent university') and its subsidiary (the 'group') for the year ended 31 July 2018 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Reserves, Balance sheet, Consolidated Cash Flow and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102; The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and the parent university's affairs as at 31 July 2018 and of the group's and the parent university's surplus, and its income and expenditure, gains and losses, changes in reserves and the group's cash flows for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education published in March 2014; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We have been appointed as auditor under the Companies Act 2006 and the Education Reform Act 1988 and report in accordance with regulations made under those Acts. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Who we are reporting to

This report is made solely to the university's Council, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the university's Council those matters we are required to state to it in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the university and the university's Council as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

- the Council's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
- the Council have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the group's or the parent university's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a

period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Council are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the reports and financial statements set out on pages 5 to 18, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the strategic report and the report of the Council incorporated in the operating and financial review for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
- the strategic report and the report of the Council incorporated in the operating and financial review has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matter on which we are required to report under the Companies Act 2006

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent university and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the report of the Council incorporated in the operating and financial review.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Office for Student's ('OfS') Terms and conditions of funding for higher education insitutions (issued March 2018) and the OfS's accounts direction (issued June 2018)

In our opinion, in all material respects:

- funds from whatever source administered by the parent university for specific purposes have been properly applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with the relevant legislation;
- funds provided by HEFCE, and the OfS have been applied in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions, and any other terms and conditions attached to them, and
- the requirements of the OfS's accounts direction (issued June 2018) have been met.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent university, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the parent university financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of the Council's remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Council for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the responsibilities of the Council members set out on pages 17 to 18, the Council (whose members are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Council determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council is responsible for assessing the group's and the parent university's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Council either intends to liquidate the group or parent university or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Grant hombon un un

William Devitt Senior Statutory Auditor for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants Birmingham Date: 23 November 2018

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the financial statements.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2014 (the 2014 FE HE SORP) and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102). The University is a public benefit entity and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the University's accounting policies.

3. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the use of previous valuations as deemed cost at transition for certain non-current assets.

4. GOING CONCERN

The activities of the University, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance, are set out in the Operating and Financial Review.

The financial position of the University and its cash flow are described in the Financial Statements and accompanying notes.

The University's forecast and financial projections indicate that it will be able to operate within this existing facility and covenants for the foreseeable future.

Accordingly, the Council has a reasonable expectation that the University has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and for this reason will continue to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of its Financial Statements.

5. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the University and its subsidiary for the financial year to 31 July 2018. Intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation. The consolidated financial statements do not include the income and expenditure of the Students' Union as the University does not exert control or dominant influence over policy decisions.

6. **RECOGNITION OF INCOME**

Income from the provision of services is credited to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure when the services are supplied to the external customers or the terms of the contract have been satisfied.

Fee income is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and credited to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure over the period in which the students are studying.

Bursaries and scholarships are accounted for gross as expenditure and not deducted from income.

Funds the University receives and disburses as paying agent on behalf of a funding body are excluded from the income and expenditure of the Institution where the Institution is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic benefit related to the transaction.

Government Grants, including funding council block grant and research grants from government sources, and other grants and donations from non-government sources, including research grants from non-government sources, are recognised within the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure when the University is entitled to the income and performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions is deferred on the Balance Sheet and released to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in line with such conditions being met.

Capital Grants are recorded in income when the Institution is entitled to the income subject to any performance related condition being met.

Investment income is credited to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on a receivable basis.

7. EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Short-term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences are recognised as an expense in the year in which the employees render services to the institution. Any unused benefits are accrued and measured as the additional amount the University expects to pay as a result of unused entitlement.

8. LEASES

Operating Leases

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Any lease premiums or incentives are spread over the minimum lease term.

9. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

(a) Land and buildings

Land and buildings at 1 August 1993 are stated at a valuation at that date. Additions since that date are stated at cost. The basis of the valuation is depreciated replacement cost and the valuation was carried out by Bond Wolfe Commercial, valuers and surveyors. Buildings (excluding improvements) are depreciated over their expected useful life of 50 years. No depreciation is provided in respect of freehold land.

On adoption of FRS 102, the University followed the transitional provision to retain the book value of land and buildings which were valued as above as deemed cost.

(b) Furniture, equipment and motor vehicles

Furniture, equipment and motor vehicles costing less than \pounds 10,000 per individual item are written off in the year of acquisition. All other furniture, equipment and motor vehicles are capitalised.

Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific grants it is capitalised and depreciated as above. The related grant is treated as a grant received in advance and released to income over the expected useful life of the equipment.

(c) Assets under construction

Assets under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architect's certificates and other direct costs incurred as at 31st July. They are not depreciated until brought into use.

(d) Depreciation

Depreciation is provided, on a straight-line basis, at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its estimated useful life, as shown

New Buildings	_	50 Years	(2% p.a.)
Internal Building Improvements	-	10 or 25 Years	(10% or 4% p.a.)
Furniture and Equipment	-	5 to 10 Years	(20% to 10% p.a.)
Telephone Equipment	-	5 Years	(20% p.a.)
Motor Vehicles	-	4 Years	(25% p.a.)
Computer Equipment	-	3 Years	(33 ¹ / ₃ % p.a.)

10. STOCKS

Stocks, comprising stationery, cleaning materials and consumables, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

11. PENSION COSTS

Retirement benefits to employees of the University are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS), Aviva Pension (APS) and National Employment Savings Trust (NEST).

(a) APS and NEST

APS and NEST are defined contribution schemes. The assets of each scheme are held independently. Contributions are charged to the Consolidated Income and Expenditure account as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

(b) TPS

The TPS is a defined benefit plan, which is externally funded and contracted out of the State Second Pension. It is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees' working lives with the University in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of valuations using a prospective benefit method. The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution plan and the contributions recognised as an expense in the income statement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

12. MAINTENANCE OF PREMISES

The University has a five-year maintenance plan, which is reviewed on an annual basis. The cost of long-term and routine maintenance is charged to the income and expenditure account as incurred.

13. TAXATION STATUS

The University is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the University is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received with categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

The University is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax (VAT), so that it can recover only a minor element of VAT charged on its inputs. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs and added to the cost of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are tangible fixed assets by nature.

14. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows comprise increases or decreases in cash. Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are repayable on demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty. No investments, however liquid, are included as cash.

15. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

Provisions (other than provisions for post-retirement benefits) are recognised when the University has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be estimated reliably.

A contingent liability arises where the University has a possible obligation as a result of past events, or where the University has a present obligation as a result of past events, but where the transfer of economic benefit to settle the obligation is not probable, or the amount of the liability cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

16. DEBT ACCOUNTING POLICY

All loans and short-term deposits held by the University are classified as basic financial instruments in accordance with FRS 102. These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction price less any transaction costs. Basic financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost as required under FRS 102.

	Notes	Year ended 31 July 2018 Consolidated University		Year ended 3 Consolidated	1 July 2017 University
INCOME	·	£	£	£	,
Funding Council Grants	1	1,387,607	1,387,607	1,583,118	1,583,118
Tuition Fees and Education Contracts	2	19,782,273	19,782,273	19,514,428	19,514,428
Research Grants and Contracts	3	540,968	540,968	1,004,192	1,004,192
Other Operating Income	4	2,422,579	2,422,579	2,321,629	2,321,605
Donations	5	-	18,695	-	-
Interest Receivable		17,168	17,166	28,110	28,108
Total Income		24,150,595	24,169,288	24,451,477	24,451,451
EXPENDITURE					
Staff Costs	6	15,233,130	15,233,130	14,475,246	14,475,246
Other Operating Expenses	7	7,179,716	7,191,107	7,389,963	7,408,632
Depreciation	8	1,137,148	1,137,148	910,147	910,147
Interest and other finance costs	9	63,364	63,364	14,374	14,374
Total Expenditure		23,613,358	23,624,749	22,789,730	22,808,399
Surplus before other gains/losses		537,237	544,539	1,661,747	1,643,052
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of fixed assets		-	-	(114,722)	(114,722)
Surplus before tax		537,237	544,539	1,547,025	1,528,330
Taxation		-	-	-	
Surplus for the year		537,237	544,539	1,547,025	1,528,330
Transfers between revaluation and income and					
expenditure reserve		147,397	147,397	147,397	147,397
Total Comprehensive Income for the year		684,634	691,936	1,694,422	1,675,727
Represented by:					
Unrestricted Comprehensive Income		537,237	544,539	1,547,025	1,528,330
Revaluation reserve comprehensive income		147,397	147,397	147,397	, ,
		684,634	691,936	1,694,422	
		,		<i>i</i> i	

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

All items of income and expenditure relate to continuing activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES

Year Ended 31 July 2018

Consolidated	Income & Expenditure Account	Revaluation Reserve	Total
Consolidated	£'000	£'000	£'000
Balance at 1 August 2016	25,416	7,095	32,511
Surplus from income and expenditure statement	1,547	-	1,547
Transfer between revaluation and income and expenditure reserve	147	(147)	-
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year	1,694	(147)	1,547
Balance at 1 August 2017	27,110	6,948	34,058
Unrestricted comprehensive income for the year	537	-	537
Transfer between revaluation and income and expenditure reserve	148	(148)	-
Balance at 31 July 2018	27,795	6800	34,595

University	Income & Expenditure Account £'000	Revaluation Reserve £'000	Total £′000
Balance at 1 August 2016	25,414	7,095	32,509
Unrestricted comprehensive income for the year	1,528	-	1,528
Transfer between revaluation and income and expenditure reserve	147	(147)	-
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year	1,675	(147)	1,528
Balance at 1 August 2017	27,089	6,948	34,037
Unrestricted comprehensive income for the year	545	-	545
Transfer between revaluation and income and expenditure reserve	148	(148)	*
Balance at 31 July 2018	27,782	6,800	34,582

BALANCE SHEET					
		Year ended 3	1 July 2018	Year ended 31	<u>L July 2017</u>
	<u>Notes</u>	Consolidated	University	Consolidated	University
		£	£	£	£
FIXED ASSETS	-	27 425 746	27 425 746	22 402 770	22 402 770
Tangible Fixed Assets	8	37,435,746	37,435,746	33,402,778	
Investments	10	-	2 37,435,748	33,402,778	2 33,402,780
		37,435,746	37,435,748	33,402,778	33,402,780
CURRENT ASSETS		23,611	23,611	22,424	22,424
Stocks Debtors	11	780,851	780,280	1,268,021	
Short Term Deposits	11	2,533,678	2,533,678	2,521,495	
Cash at Bank and in Hand	14	3,483,551	3,465,894	2,715,124	2,702,854
	T	5,105,551	5,105,051	2,710,121	2,7 02,00 1
		6,821,691	6,803,463	6,527,064	6,492,375
CREDITORS: Amounts falling		0,021,051	0,000,100	0,027,001	0,102,070
due within one year	12	(2,984,176)	(2,979,325)	(4,975,908)	(4,961,898)
due within one year	12	(1)50 (1)2707	(_/////////////////////////////////////	(.,,	(.,,
NET CURRENT ASSETS		3,837,515	3,824,138	1,551,156	1,530,477
		· · · · ·	<u> </u>		i
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT					
LIABILITIES		41,273,261	41,259,886	34,953,934	34,933,257
CREDITORS: Amounts falling	12	(6 250 224)	(6 250 224)	(601 667)	(601 667)
due after more than one year	12	(6,258,334)	(6,258,334)	(691,667)	(691,667)
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES					
AND CHARGES	13	(419,797)	(419,797)	(204,374)	(204,374)
	13	(115), 57)	(125), 57)	(201,071)	(201,071)
NET PENSION LIABILITY	19	-	-	-	-
TOTAL NET ASSETS		34,595,130	34,581,755	34,057,893	34,037,216
RESERVES General reserve	16	27,795,058	27,781,683	27,110,424	27,089,747
General reserve	10	21,195,058	27,701,083	27,110,424	21,009,141
Revaluation Reserve	15	6,800,072	6,800,072	6,947,469	6,947,469
	10				· · ·
TOTAL RESERVES		34,595,130	34,581,755	34,057,893	34,037,216

The financial statements on pages 22 to 37 were approved by Council on 22 November 2018 and signed on their behalf by:

Mr Jonathan Day

....

(Chair of Council)

Professor J Scott Davidson (Vice Chancellor/Council Member)

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.

Registered Company Number: 05493384

Consolidated Cash	Flow		
	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Year ended</u> <u>31 July 2018</u> £	<u>Year ended</u> <u>31 July2017</u> £
		L	L
Surplus on continuing operations		537,237	1,547,025
Adjustment for Non-Cash Items Depreciation charges (Increase)/decrease in stocks (Increase)/decrease in debtors		1,137,148 (1,187) 487,170	910,147 1,370 (452,803)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors		(1,990,230)	596,268
(Decrease)/increase in provisions		215,423	139,050
Adjustment for Investing and Financing Activities Investment Income Interest Payable		(17,168) 63,364	(28,110) 14,374
Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities	-	431,757	2,727,321
Cash flows from Investing Activities Investment Income Payments made to acquire fixed assets New Deposits Net Cash flows from Investing Activities		17,168 (5,170,117) (12,183) (5,165,132)	28,110 (10,253,384) - (10,225,274)
	-		
Cash flows from Financing Activities Interest Paid New unsecured loans Repayments of Amounts borrowed Withdrawal of Deposits		(63,364) 5,650,000 (83,333) -	(14,374) - (83,333) 5,490,180
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities	-	5,503,303	5,392,473
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the year	=	769,928	(2,105,480)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year	14	2,710,019	4,815,499
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	14	3,479,947	2,710,019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. FUNDING COUNCIL GRANTS

	Year ended 3	1 July 2018	Year ended 31 July 2017		
			Consolidated	University	
	£	£	£	£	
Office for Students Recurrent Grant	201,127	201,127	-	-	
UK Research & Innovation Grant	57,235	57,235	-	-	
HEFCE Recurrent Grant	626,056	626,056	1,016,027	1,016,027	
HEFCE Recurrent Research Grant	103,459	103,459	153,599	153,599	
HEFCE Other Grants	331,081	331,081	196,759	196,759	
NCTL Other Grants	68,649	68,649	216,733	216,733	
	1,387,607	1,387,607	1,583,118	1,583,118	
2. TUITION FEES AND EDUCATION CONTRACTS	3				
UK Full-time Students	18,030,789	18,030,789	17,593,726	17,593,726	
Non UK Full-time Students	87,325	87,325	320,204	320,204	
UK Part-time Students	1,619,200	1,619,200	1,546,085	1,546,085	
Examination Fees	8,109	8,109	13,500	13,500	
Other Fees & Charges	36,850	36,850	40,913	40,913	
	19,782,273	19,782.273	19,514,428	19,514,428	
3. RESEARCH GRANTS & CONTRACTS					
Research Grants	540,968	540,96	8 1,004,192	1,004,192	
4. OTHER OPERATING INCOME					
Residences and Catering	1,294,687	1,294,68	7 1,151,568	1,151,568	
Other Income	1,127,892	1,127,89	2 1,170,061	1,170,037	
	2,422,579	2,422,57	9 2,321,629	2,321,605	
5. DONATIONS					
Unrestricted Donation from Subsidiary		18,69	5 -	-	

6. STAFF COSTS

The average number of persons (including senior post-holders) employed during the year, expressed as full-time equivalents, was 307 (2017: 319). Payroll costs during the year were as follows:

	Year ended 31	<u>July 2018</u>	Year ended 3	<u>1 July 2017</u>
	Consolidated	University	Consolidated	University
	£	£	£	£
Wages and Salaries				
Teaching Staff	6,819,434	6,819,434	6,807,339	6,807,339
Non-Teaching Staff	5,394,674	5,394,674	4,817,109	4,817,109
Social Security Costs	1,286,199	1,286,199	1,209,196	1,209,196
Other Pension Costs	1,732,823	1,732,823	1,641,602	1,641,602
	15,233,130	15,233,130	14,475,246	14,475,246
Emoluments of the Vice-Chancellor				
Remuneration:	164,754	164,754	162,504	162,504
Pension contributions:	27,151	27,151	26,781	26,781
Total Emoluments	191,905	191,905	189,285	189,285

The Vice Chancellor's total salary comprises his basic annual gross salary and employer's pension contribution. In the financial year ending 31 July 2018 no bonus or severance, market supplements, salary sacrifice or allowances (paid or deferred) were made. The Vice-Chancellor's basic salary remains in the bottom quartile of the heads of institution within the higher education sector when measured against sector benchmarks (based on 2016/17 data), including that of the Cathedrals Group of which Newman is a member.

The Vice-Chancellor's basic salary is 5:1 times the median pay of staff, where the median pay is calculated on a full-time equivalent basis for the salaries paid by Newman University to its staff. The Vice-Chancellor's total remuneration salary is 5:1 times the median total remuneration of staff, where the median remuneration is calculated on a full-time equivalent basis for the salaries paid by Newman University to its staff.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and control the activities of the University and are represented by the Council appointed Senior Post-Holders, which comprises the Vice Chancellor, two Pro Vice Chancellors, the University Registrar and the Director of Finance and Corporate Services.

	<u>2018</u> £′000	<u>2017</u> £'000
Salaries Benefits in kind	580	556
	580	556
Pension contributions	96	92
Employers NI	74	
Total emoluments	750	720

Remuneration of higher paid staff, excluding pension contributions (excluding the Vice Chancellor)

Basic Salary per Annum	No of employees 2018	No of employees 2017
£100,000 - £104,999	-	-
£105,000 - £109,999	-	2
£110,000 - £114,999	2	-

Council Members' Expenses

No Council member has received any remuneration / waived payments from the University during the year (2017: NIL). The total expenses paid to or on behalf xx Council Members was £2,097 (2017: £3,573). This represents travel and subsistence expenses incurred with respect to attendance at Council meetings and also expenses incurred with respect to the provision of relevant continuing professional development for members.

7. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

		Year ended 31 July 2018		Year ended 3	<u>31 July 2017</u>
		Consolidated	University	Consolidated	University
		£	£	£	£
Other Operating Expenses	include:				
Auditors' Remuneration:	External Audit	26,092	23,292	24,974	22,224
	Internal Audit	27,267	27,267	23,342	23,342

8. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

		Fixtures,	Assets in the	
	Land and	Fittings &	course of	
Consolidated	<u>Buildings</u>	<u>Equipment</u>	construction	Total
	£	£	£	£
Cost or Valuation				
At 1 August 2017	33,846,779	972,445	9,008,790	43,828,014
Additions	3,113,495	466,745	1,589,876	5,170,116
Transfers	8,950,066	-	(8,950,066)	-
At 31 July 2018	45,910,340	1,439,190	1,648,600	48,998,130
Depreciation				
At 1 August 2017	9,644,462	780,774	-	10,425,236
Charge for the year	1,006,486	130,662	-	1,137,148
At 31 July 2018	10,650,948	911,436		11,562,384
Written down values:				
	35,259,392	527,754	1,648,600	37,435,746
At 31 July 2018		527,754	1,048,000	37,435,740
At 31 July 2017	24,202,317	191,671	9,008,790	33,402,778

University	Land and <u>Buildings</u>	Fixtures, Fittings & <u>Equipment</u>	Assets in the course of <u>construction</u>	Total
	£	£		£
Cost or Valuation				
At 1 August 2017	33,846,779	940,958	9,008,790	43,796,527
Additions	3,113,495	466,745	1,589,876	5,170,116
Transfers	8,950,066	-	(8,950,066)	-
At 31 July 2018	45,910,340	1,407,703	1,648,600	48,966,643
Depreciation				
At 1 August 2017	9,644,462	749,287	-	10,393,749
Charge for the year	1,006,486	130,662	<u> </u>	1,137,148
At 31 July 2018	10,650,948	879,949		11,530,897
Written down values:				
At 31 July 2018	35,259,392	527,754	1,648,600	37,435,746
At 31 July 2017	24,202,317	191,671	9,008,790	33,402,778
			<u></u>	

The transitional rules set out in FRS 102 have been applied on implementing FRS 102. Accordingly, the book values at implementation have been retained.

Land and buildings were valued in 1993 at depreciated replacement cost by a firm of independent chartered surveyors. At 31 July 2018 land of \pounds 3,831,375 was held within land and buildings and is not depreciated.

9. INTEREST

Interest and other finance costs relate to interest payable on the term loan.

10. INVESTMENTS

The University holds 100% of the share capital of Newman Firmtrust Limited at a cost of $\pounds 2$ (2017: $\pounds 2$), which is a trading company that is incorporated and registered in England and Wales. The principal trading activity of the company is the construction of a halls of residence and a building extension on behalf of Newman University.

The following is a summary of financial information in respect of the subsidiary at 31 July 2018:

	Year ended 31 July 2018		Year ended 31 July 201	
	Consolidated	University	Consolidated	University
	£	£	£	£
Investment in Subsidiary		2		2

11. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS

	Year ended 31 July 2018		Year ended 3	1 July 2017
AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR:	Consolidated	University	Consolidated	University
	£	£	£	£
Fees and services	549,363	549,363	1,011,760	407,164
Prepayments and accrued income	231,488	230,917	256,261	256,261
Amount due from subsidiary undertaking	-	-	-	582,177
	780,851	780,280	1,268,021	1,245,602

12. CREDITORS

	Year ended 31 July 2018		Year ended 31 July 2017	
	Consolidated	University	Consolidated	University
AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR:	£	£	£	£
Bank overdraft	3,604	3,604	5,105	5,105
Term Loan	83,333	83,333	83,333	83,333
Trade and other creditors	1,039,490	1,039,489	2,886,619	1,323,450
Amount payable to subsidiary undertaking	-	-	-	1,560,074
Payments received in advance				
NCTL grants	-	-	51,849	51,849
HEFCE grants	8,264	8,264	94,083	94,083
Other	266,332	266,332	384,779	384,779
Social security and other taxation payable	330,670	330,670	309,503	309,503
Accruals	1,252,483	1,247,633	1,160,637	1,149,722
	2,984,176	2,979,325	4,975,908	4,961,898

AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR:

HEFCE Revolving Green Fund	150,000	150,000	150,000	150,000
Revolving Cash Facility	5,650,000	5,650,000	-	-
Term Loan	458,334	458,334	541,667	541,667
	6,258,334	6,258,334	691,667	691,667

A term loan of £1,000,000 was drawn down in 2012, which is repayable in regular instalments totalling £83,333 per annum. The rate of interest on the loan is variable and based on 1.75% over LIBOR base rate.

A Revolving Cash Facility of £7,000,000 was arranged in August 2017 with an expiry date of August 2019 at which point this will be converted to a term loan. The rate of interest on utilised drawdowns is 0.49% over LIBOR base rate, with a commitment fee of 0.25% p.a. of any undrawn part of the facility.

INCLUDED WITHIN THE ABOVE ARE AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AS FOLLOWS:-

	Year ended 3 Consolidated	Year ended 31 July 2018				
		University £	Consolidated £	University		
Between one and two years:	۲	L	£	£		
Term Loan	166,666	166,666	166,666	166,666		
Revolving Credit Facility	5,650,000	5,650,000	-	-		
	5,816,666	5,816,666	166,666	166,666		
Between two and five years:			- 40 - 000			
Term Loan	249,999	249,999	249,999	249,999		
More than five years:						
HEFCE Revolving Green Fund	150,000	150,000	150,000	150,000		
Term Loan	41,669	41,669	125,002	125,002		
	191,669	191,669	275,002	275,002		

13. PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Consolidated	Enhanced <u>Pensions</u> £	Other <u>Provisions</u> £	<u>Total</u> £
At 1 August 2017 Transfer from Income and Expenditure	54,374	150,000	204,374
Account	(11,135)	226,558	215,423
At 31 July 2018	43,239	376,558	419,797

University	Enhanced <u>Pensions</u> £	Other <u>Provisions</u> £	<u>Total</u> £
At 1 August 2017 Transfer from Income and Expenditure	54,374	150,000	204,374
Account	(11,135)	226,558	215,423
At 31 July 2018	43,239	376,558	419,797

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

	At 1 August 2017	Cash flows	At 31 July 2018
Consolidated	£	£	£
Cash and cash equivalents Bank Overdraft	2,715,124 (5,105)	768,427 1,501	3,483,551 (3,604)
Total	2,710,019	769,928	3,479,947
University Cash and cash equivalents Bank Overdraft	2,702,854 (5,105)	763,040 1,501	3,465,894 (3,604)
Total	2,697,749	764,541	3,462,290

15. REVALUATION RESERVE

	Year Ended 31 July 18		Year Ended 31 July 17	
	Consolidated	University	Consolidated	University
	£	£	£	£
Revaluations				
At 1 August and 31 July	10,768,969	10,768,969	10,768,969	10,768,969
Contributions to Depreciation				
At 1 August	3,821,500	3,821,500	3,674,103	3,674,103
Released in year	147,397	147,397	147,397	147,397
At 31 July	3,968,897	3,968,897	3,821,500	3,821,500
Net Revaluation Amount				
At 31 July	6,800,072	6,800,072	6,947,469	6,947,469
16. GENERAL RESERVES				
	Year Ended 31		Year Ended 31	July 2017
	Consolidated	University	Consolidated	University
	C	c .	r	c

	£	<u>Ł</u>	Ľ	£
Income and Expenditure Account				
Balance at 1 August	27,110,424	27,089,747	25,416,002	25,414,020
Surplus for the year	537,237	544,539	1,547,025	1,528,330
Depreciation released in the year	147,397	147,397	147,397	147,397
Balance as at 31 July	27,795,058	27,781,683	27,110,424	27,089,747

17. CONTINGENT LIABILITY

Exchequer interests (representing the contributions made by HEFCE towards the construction and refurbishment of University buildings) amounted to \pounds 2,035,599 as at 31 July 2018. Exchequer interests are amortised over 10-15 years and are repayable only in the event of insolvency or a significant reduction in the level of HEFCE-funded activity.

In the event of a substantial change in the mission of the University to the effect that the University is no longer concerned with the provision of education as a Catholic institution, the University may be liable to pay an amount to the Catholic Education Service of up to 25% of the value of the premises. It is not possible to quantify the amount of the contingent liability.

18. STUDENT NUMBERS

The number of students attending courses (excluding short courses) at the University were:	<u>2018</u>	<u>2017</u>
Full-time	2068	2,090
Part-time	691	739
	2759	2,829

19. PENSION SCHEMES

The three pension schemes for the University's staff are the Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS), Aviva Pension scheme (APS) and National Employment Savings Trust (NEST). The assets of the schemes are held in separate administered funds.

	Year ended 31 July 2018		Year ended 31 July 2017	
Total pension cost for the year	Consolidated	University	Consolidated	University
	£	£	£	£
Teachers' Pension Scheme: employer contributions paid	1,185,804	1,185,804	1,155,560	1,155,560
Aviva Pension Scheme: contributions paid	544,675	544,675	483,995	483,995
NEST: employer contributions paid	2,344	2,344	2,047	2,047
Total Pension Cost for Year	1,732,823	1,732,823	1,641,602	1,641,602
Made up of:				
Employee costs	1,732,823	1,732,823	1,641,602	1,641,602
Finance costs	-	-	-	-
Total Pension Cost for Year	1,732,823	1,732,823	1,641,602	1,641,602

(a) TPS

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010, and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. These regulations apply to teachers in schools and other educational establishments, including academies, in England and Wales that are maintained by local authorities. In addition, teachers in many independent and voluntary-aided schools and teachers and lecturers in some establishments of further and higher education may be eligible for membership. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers and lecturers and, from 1 January 2007, automatic too for teachers and lecturers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract. Teachers and lecturers are able to opt out of the TPS.

The Teachers' Pension Budgeting and Valuation Account

Although members may be employed by various bodies, their retirement and other pension benefits are set out in regulations made under the Superannuation Act 1972 and are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis – these contributions, along with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer under arrangements governed by the above Act.

The Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010 require an annual account, the Teachers' Pension Budgeting and Valuation Account, to be kept of receipts and expenditure (including the cost of pension increases). From 1 April 2001, the Account has been credited with a real rate of return, which is equivalent to assuming that the balance in the Account is invested in notional investments which produce that real rate of return.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The latest actuarial review of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with The Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education (the Department) on 9 June 2014. The key results of the valuation and the subsequent consultation are:

- employer contribution rates were set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% levy for administration);
- total scheme liabilities for service to the effective date of £191.5 billion, and notional assets of £176.6 billion, giving a notional past service deficit of £14.9 billion;
- an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

The new employer contribution rate for the TPS was implemented in September 2015.

A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on the Teachers' Pension Scheme website at the following location:

https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2014/06/publication-of-the-valuation-report.aspx

Scheme changes

Following the Hutton report in March 2011 and the subsequent consultations with trade unions and other representative bodies on reform of the TPS, the Department published a Proposed Final Agreement, setting out the design for a reformed TPS which was implemented from 1 April 2015.

The key provisions of the reformed scheme include: a pension based on career average earnings; an accrual rate of 1/57th; and a Normal Pension Age equal to State Pension Age, but with options to enable members to retire earlier or later than their Normal Pension Age. Importantly, pension benefits built up before 1 April 2015 will be fully protected.

In addition, the Proposed Final Agreement includes a Government commitment that those within 10 years of Normal Pension Age on 1 April 2012 will see no change to the age at which they can retire, and no decrease in the amount of pension they receive when they retire. There will also be further transitional protection, tapered over a three-and-a-half-year period, for people who would fall up to three and a half years outside of the 10 year protection.

Regulations giving effect to a reformed Teachers' Pension Scheme came into force on 1 April 2014 and the reformed scheme commenced on 1 April 2015.

The pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,920,036 (2017: £1,861,386).

FRS 102 (28)

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension plan. The University is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan.

Accordingly the University has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The University has set out above the information available on the plan and the implications for the University in terms of the anticipated contribution rates.

(b) APS

The APS is operated by the University and is a defined contribution scheme designed to provide retirement benefits for any of its permanent employees who elect to join the scheme. The assets of the scheme are independent of the University's finances. The pension costs charged to the consolidated income and expenditure account (Note 5) include contributions payable by the University to the scheme.

20. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

	Year ended 31 July 2018		Year ended 31 July 2017	
	Consolidated	University	Consolidated	University
	£	£	£	£
Contracted but not provided for at 31st July	392,348	392,348	2,898,805	2,898,470

This relates to the ongoing improvements to, and development of the Newman University campus.

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Vice Chancellor rents a house from the University with 4 years remaining on the tenancy agreement. The rent is set on an arms length basis, at full market value. The rent charged in 2017/18 was £10,292 including utilities.

The University has a wholly owned subsidiary, Newman Firmtrust Limited. The principal activity of Newman Firmtrust Limited in the period 1^{st} August $2017 - 31^{st}$ July 2018 is the construction of a hall of residence and a building extension on behalf of Newman University. As Newman Firmtrust Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary, the University have taken the exemption under FRS102 section 33.1A not to disclose transactions between the two entities.